### By-laws of the

### MADONNA WHEELERS CYCLING CLUB

### 1) NAME AND HEADQUARTERS:

The club shall be called MADONNA WHEELERS CYCLING CLUB. It shall have as its headquarters the city of Toronto, with a postal address to be determined from time to time by the Executive Committee. The name may also include from time to time that of the club sponsor.

## 2) CLUB COLOURS:

The club colours shall be Blue, Gold and Red and may include the colours of the sponsor.

- 3) OBJECTS:
- A To promote and encourage the sport of cycling.
- B To secure sponsorship and use it to subsidise club clothing for its members.
- C To affiliate with the governing body of cycling in the country.
  - 4) PROPERTY OF THE CLUB:

All members of the club shall be equally responsible for its liabilities as between themselves and the property of the club, subject to such liabilities, shall belong to its paid up members for the time being.

### 5) MEMBERSHIP:

Membership is open to all 9 years old and above with an interest in cycling.

Applicants must also register with the OCA before taking part in club activities.

Membership may be revoked at any time if the Executive Committee deems the conduct of the member to be detrimental to the character and interests of the club and its members.

Honorary membership may be conferred by a vote of the executive committee.

## 6) SUBSCRIPTIONS:

Annual fee is \$25.00

### 7) OFFICERS:

The officers of the club shall be the President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer. The club when registered as a Non-Profit Corporation with the Province of Ontario shall have as its board of directors the President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer as elected at the Annual General Meeting.

### 8) COACH:

The club will elect a Coach at the annual general meeting to preside over the activities and competitions of its members .

#### 9) WEBMASTER:

The club will elect a Webmaster to oversee and update the activities of the club on its website.

## 10) MANAGEMENT:

The Executive Committee will meet to make decisions regarding the management of the club and will call the Annual General Meeting once a year. The quorum will be three members of the Committee and questions shall be decided by a majority of votes.

### 11) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

The order of business shall be:

- To confirm the minutes of the previous general meeting
- · Business arising out of minutes
- Correspondence
- Report of the Executive Committee
- Report of the Treasurer
- Report of the Coach
- Election of officers
- General Business

# 12) QUORUM:

The quorum for the general meeting will be decided by the Executive Committee prior to starting the meeting. Adequate notice of at least 7 days must be given to the membership.

## 13) FINANCIAL YEAR:

The club's fiscal year shall end December 31st.

## 14) FUNDS:

The club's account for now will be CIBC at Markham Road in Scarborough.

# 15) DISSOLUTION:

If upon reaching agreement of a proposal by the Executive Committee to dissolve the club, the Committee shall liquidate all club assets and discharge all liabilities, donating the proceeds to charity.